Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of iValue Infosolutions Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ivalue Infosolutions Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), (refer Note 57 to the attached consolidated
financial statements), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) , the
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in which are included the Returns
for the year ended on that date audited by the branch auditor of the Company’s 1 branch located at
Singapore (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at March
31, 2023, of consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive
income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. Weconducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 11 and 13 of the Other Matters section below, other than
the unaudited financial statements as certified by the management and referred to in sub-paragraph
12 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other Information

4.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of the
other auditors as furnished to us (Refer paragraph 11 and 13 below), we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

5.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.




Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of iValue Infosolutions Private Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 3 of 7

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matters

11. We did not audit the Consolidated financial statements of 1 subsidiary (along with its step-down
subsidiary) whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs 713 lakhs and net liability of Rs 324
lakhs as at March 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. 1,742 lakhs, total comprehensive income (comprising
of loss and other comprehensive income) of Rs 185 lakhs and net cash outflows amounting to Rs 100
lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section
(3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

12. We did not audit the financial statements of 2 branches located outside India whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs 1,017 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 9o1 lakhs as at March 31, 2023,
total revenue of Rs. 428 lakhs, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income) of Rs 169 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs 40 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements
are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
branches and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other
Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid branches, is based solely on such unaudited financial
statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

13. The financial statements of 1 subsidiary and 1 branch, located outside India, included in the
Consolidated financial statements, which constitute total assets of Rs. 8,356 lakhs and net assets of
Rs. 2,135 lakhs as at March 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. 21,823 lakhs, total comprehensive income
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 886 lakhs and net cash inflow
amounting to Rs. 1,168 lakhs for the year then ended, have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in its country and have been audited by other auditor under
generally accepted auditing standards applicable in its country. The Company’s management has
converted the financial statements of the subsidiary and branch, located outside India from the
accounting principles generally accepted in its country to the accounting principles generally accepted
in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company’s management. Our
opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures of such branch located outside India
including other information is based on the report of other auditor and the conversion adjustments
prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.




Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of iValue Infosolutions Private Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 5 0of 7

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditor and the financial statements certified by the
management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

14. Asrequired by paragraph 3(xxi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO 2020”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we
report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks included by the respective auditors in
their CARO 2020 reports issued in respect of the standalone financial statements of the companies
which are included in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) Thereports on the accounts of the branch office of the Company audited under Section 143(8)
of the Act by branch auditor have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in
preparing this report.

(d) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

(e) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company incorporated in
India, none of the directors of the Group Companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as
on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure A.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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ii.

iii.

iv.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts — Refer Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, there were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and
its subsidiary company incorporated in India.

(a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditor of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company or such subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or
such subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements);

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or
such subsidiary from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company or such subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements);

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the auditor of the subsidiary
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e)
contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies have not declared or paid any
dividend during the year.
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vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which
provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters
in the accounting software used by the Group, is applicable to the Group, only with effect
from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable.

16. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Group.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E-300009

7

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner

Membership Number: 112433
UDIN: 23112433BGYMOD1084

Mumbai
September 30, 2023
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. Inconjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of iValue Infosolutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) as of that date. Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in
respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is
not applicable to the subsidiary companies incorporated in India, pursuant to MCA notification GSR
583(E) dated 13 June 2017.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company which is a company incorporated in
India, is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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4.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial
controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Holding Company, which is a company incorporated in India, has in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAL.

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

e

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner

Membership Number 112433
UDIN: 23112433BGYMOD1084
Mumbai

September 30, 2023



IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

IVALLUI=

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Asat As at
Note No. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
| S ASSETS .
1|Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3a 628 566
{b) Right-of-use assets 4 2,956 227
{c) Goodwill 3b 764 -
{d) OtherIntangible assets 3b 63 20
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Other investments 5a - -
(ii) Loans 6a 602 600
(iii) Other financial assets 7a 323 106
(f}  Income tax assets (net) 13 2,023 2,969
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 8,31 519 276
(h) Other non-current assets 9a 221 176
Total Non-current assets 8,099 4,940
2|Current assets
{a) Inventories 10 15,396 2,888
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments Sb 1,115 4,503
(i)  Trade receivables 11 70,166 42,727
{iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12a 6,053 3,134
{iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12b 1,943 1,950
(v} Loans 6b 1 -
(vi) Other financial assets 7b 502 256
(c) Other current assets 9b 4,747 1,467
Total Current assets 99,923 56,925
Total Assets 108,022 61,865
Il [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1|EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 14 (i) 421 421
{b) Preference Share capital 14 (ii) 125 125
{c) Other Equity 15 29,522 23,503
(d)  Non Controlling Interest (98) -
Total Equity 29,970 24,049
Z|LIABILITIES
(i) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18a 53 -
(il) Lease Liabilities 4 2,624 149
(b) Current tax liabilities (net) 16 253 383
(c) Provisions 17a 505 175
Total Non-current llabillties 3,435 707
(ii) Current liabillties
{2} Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18b 4,995 1,700
(i) Lease Liabilities 4 303 129
(iii} Trade payables
(a} Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 19 8 -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than (iii) (a) above 65,085 31,125
{iv)  Other financial liabilities 20 199 110
(b) Contract liabllities 21 260 781
(c) Other current liabilities 22 3,690 3,213
(d) Provisions 17b 77 51
Total Current liabliitles 74,617 37,109
Total Equity and Liabilities 108,022 61,865

Partner

As per our report of even date

Membership Number: 112433
Place: Mumbai
Date: September 30, 2023

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountant LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

37

Arwfikumar Ramdas

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of iValue InfoSolutions Private Limited

Sunilkumar Pillai
Managing Director

offI—

—""""Krishnaraj Sharma

Director

DIN: 02226978
Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

i ‘{ﬁwﬂﬁk

Swaroop MV N
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

DIN: 03091392
Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

Lakshmammanni
Company Secretary
Membership No: A51625

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

iIVALLI=

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
|Income
I.|Revenue from Operations 23 181,066 129,635
II.|Other Income 24 1,004 793
Total Income (1 + 1) 182,070 130,428
Il Expenses:
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 25 175,730 116,582
Changes in inventories of Stock-in-trade 26 (12,508) 433
Employee benefits expense 27 4,113 2,531
Finance Costs 28 774 896
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 410 250
QOther expenses 30 5,520 3,730
Total Expenses 174,039 124,422
IV|Profit befare tax 8,031 6,006
V|Tax Expense / (Benefit)
(1) Current tax 31 2,131 1,638
(2) Tax adjustments for earlier years (Net) 66 5
(3) Deferred tax 31 (158) (77)
VI|Profit for the period 5,992 4,440
VI1|Other Comprehensive Income
A|ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{i) Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 33 (0) 0
(ii) Income tax relating to these items 0 0
B|ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {4) (1)
(ii) Income tax relating to these items - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (4) (1)
Vlil|Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Vi+VI1} (Comprising Profit (Loss) and 5,988 4,439
Other Comprehensive income for the period)
Profit is attributable to:
(i) Owners 5,999 4,440
(i) Non-controlling interests 7 0
5,992 4,440
Other comprehensive income is attributable to:
(i) Owners (4) (1)
(ii) Non-controlling interests (0) 0
(a) (1)
Total comprehensive income is attributable to:
(i) Owners 5,995 4,439
(i) Non-controlling interests {7 -
5,988 4,439
XI|Earnings per equity share attributable to owners: - 39
Basic EPS (in Rs.) 142 105
Diluted EPS (in Rs.) 112 8_3_

#"0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.

As per our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountant LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009
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Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner

Membership Number: 112433
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 30, 2023

The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of iValue InfoSolutions Private Limited

/'
T .
/ /
/
inilkumar Pilfal
s Managing Director
DIN: 02226978

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

e

Swaroop MV N
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

Director

DIN: 03091392

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023

Lakshmamman;i
Company Secretary
Membership No: A51625
Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

iIVALU=

M3, 1N LaKNS)

PARTICULARS Notes For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax 8,031 6,006
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 410 250
Pravision for Employee stock appreciation rights 204 68
Interest Income (333) (139)
Net Gain on Investments carried at Fair Value through Profit or Lass (123) (36)
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 7 (6)
Gain on Termination of Leases (18) .
Net Fair value loss / {gain) on derivatives not designated as hedges 67 24
Unrealised {gain)/ loss on foreign currency translation (195) (218)
Finance costs 774 836
Bad Debts Written off 663 169
I made / {r d) for credit loss on trade receivables (43) 1,399 179 1,187
Operating Profit before Working Capltal Changes 9,430 7,193
Adjustments for :
(increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets {472) (125)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (12,507} 432
{Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (27,291) (9,529)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current and Non current Assets (3,220) (975)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 33,367 7,784
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 22 B6
Increase / {Decrease) in Provisions 41 19
Increase / (Decrease) in Contract Liabilities (738) 710
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 349 (10,449) 468 (1,130)
Cash Generated from operations {1,019) 6,063
Less: Income tax payments {net of refunds received; {1.212) {2.744)
Net Cash flow from/{used In) Operating Actlvities {A) {2.231) 3319
1I.CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment made in subsidlary (550) -
F far pi of i (3,500) (2,458)
Proceeds from sale of investments 7,011
Net Proceeds from withdrawal/(placement) of fixed deposits with banks (90) 767
Loan given (2) (600)
Interest received an a8
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (including capital advance) (270) 2,870 { {2,391)]
Net Cash from/{used in) Investing Activities {(B) 2,970 (2,391}
1li.CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
{Repayment) of / Proceeds from borrowing other than long term 3,215 (1,835)
(Repayment) of / Proceeds from long term rupee term loan from banks (70) .
Repayment of Lease Llabilities (241) {138}

Finance cost Paid (774} 2,130 896 (2,869) |
| Net Cash Flow from / (Used in) Financing Actlvities (C) 2,130 (2,869)|
Net (Decrease)/ Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents {A+B+C) 2,869 (1,941)
Cash and Cash Equlvalents at the beginning of the year 12a 3,134 5,055

Cash and Cash q on 36 21 -
Cash and Cash Equi inb 55 29 -
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 20
Cash & Cash Equivatent at the end of the year 12a 6,053 3,134
!Non cash transactions from Investing and financing activities:
Acquisition of Right of use Assets 4 2,928 2
Termination of Right of use Assets 4 (61)
Reconclation of liabllitles arising from financing activitles
Liabilitles arlsing from financing activities
Borrowings Lease llabllitles Total
Balance as at 1 April 2021 3,539 414 3,953
Additions - 2 2
Repayment (1,839) (170) (2,009)
Interest expenses 170 32 202
Interest paid (170} - (170)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,700 278 1,978
On acquisition of subsidiary 200 - 200
Additions 3,148 2,928 6,076
Repayment - {330) (330)
Interest expenses 200 123 323
Interest paid (200) - (200}
Deletions - {72) (72)
|Balance as ot 31 Morch 2023 5,048 2,927 1,975

The above Statement of Cash flows should be read in with the

As per out report of even date

h & Co. C LLp
Firm Regipqtion Number: 304026E/ E-300009

@r»/

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner

Membaership Number: 112433
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 30, 2023

For Price

notes,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IValue InfoSolutions Private Limited

Sunilkumar Plllai
Managing Director

DIN: 02226978

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023
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SwarcopM VN
Chlef Financlal Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

AKX

Krishnara] Sharma
Director

DIN: 03091392

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023

Lakshmammanani
Company Secretary
Membership No: A51625
Place; Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

IVALU=

(Rs. In Lakhs})
5 i’ Reserves & Surplus l Other reserves
Preference Share N Securities Retained (Foreign currency] Non-controllin,
Particulars Equity Share Capital capital Capital premium earnings translation N Interests 8 TOTAL
Contribution Reserve reserve)

[Balance as on 31 March 2021 a21 125 | - 8,538 10,526 . s 19,610
Profit for the Year - ) 4,440 . 4,440
Other Comprehensive Income - - - (O)H (1) (1)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - 4,440 {1) - 4,439

[Batance as on 31 March 2022 421 125 8,538 14,566 1] : 24,049 |
Acquisition of Subsidiary - - . . . . {91) [CEY]
Profit for the Year/Period - - - 5,999 - (7) 5,992
Other Comprehensive Income - - - . o)} {4) (0) (4)
Total Comprehenslve iIncome for the year - - - - 5,999 {4) (7) 5,988
Deemed Capital Ccntribuﬁgl(llefer Note 36) B -l 24 = _ = - 24
Balance as on 31 March 2023 421 125 24 8.538 20,965 {5) [958} 29,970

# "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.

The above Statement of Changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountant LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

pe”

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner

Membership Number: 112433
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 30, 2023
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of IValue InfoSolutions Private Limited

Sunllkumar Plllai Krishnaraj Sharma

Managing Director

DiN: 02226978

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023

SwarcopM VN
Chief Financlal Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

Director

DIN: 03091392

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023

Lakshmammanni
Company Secretary
Membership No: A51625
Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED . , I =
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 l \ /\ i l l p

Background

Ivalue infoSolutions Private Limited (the “Company”) is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in india and it is
the Parent Entity for the iValue Group (the "Group"). The registered office of the Company is located at No. 903/1/1, 19th Main
Road, 4th Sector, HSR Layout, Bangalore - 560 102. The Group provides Digital Assets protection and Data, Network &
Application (DNA) management with associated services through 1000+ channel network with 75+ direct OEM partnership. Key
verticals are BFSI vertical, eGovernance projects, ITeS vertical, Telecom, Manufacturing, Education and Hospitality vertical
(Categorized as i) Digital Asset Management and Protection and {ii) Software and Allied Support). The Group’s registered office
is in Bangalore and it has branches across India and outside India (Singapore, Kenya and Bangladesh).

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

This Note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the group consisting of Ivalue Infosolutions Private Limited (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries.

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The consolidated financial statements
comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
-Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair value.
-Share based payments

(iii) New standard adopted by the Group

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2022. These amendments did
not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.

(iv) New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other
amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS
12 as the Group’s accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

(v) Current -Non current classification:

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria as set out in Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of the Group's business and the
time between acquisition of assets for trading and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the group has ascertained its
operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of classification of the assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

(b) Basis of Consolidation

(b)(i) Subsidiaries:

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity where the group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the group.

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets,
liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

;I\-’W"
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 l \,/\ l_ L ’ ot
{b)(ii) The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

When the group ceases to consolidate because of a loss of control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments. The board of
directors of the Group assess the financial performance and position of the group and make strategic decisions and therefore
are identified as chief operating decision makers. Refer note 40 for segment information.

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the each of the group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. The functional
currency of Asia iValue Pte. Ltd. is USD and that of ASPL Info Services Private Limited is INR. The functional currency of the
branches is INR.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. At the year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the year - end
exchange rates. The exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the year-end
restatement are recognised in profit and loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a net basis within ‘Other Income’/‘Other Expenses’. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

(iif) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet

- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates, and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings
and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

(e) (i) Revenue Recognition

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation in accordance with the contract with the customer.
This is achieved when control of the product has been transferred to the customer, which is generally determined when legal
title, physical possession, risk of obsolescence, loss and rewards of ownership pass to the customer and the Group has the
present right to payment, all of which occurs at a point in time upon shipment or delivery of the product.

Revenue from sale of goods and services are recognised based on transaction price agreed with customer as per the terms of
the contract and are stated net of discounts, rebates etc.

Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that significant reversal will not occur.

Transaction price excludes taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government.
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No significant element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term, which is consistent with market
practice.

The Group has assessed its revenue arrangements based on the specific criteria given in the Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts
with customers” to determine if it is acting as principal or agent basis which the Group has recognised revenue on gross basis.

Contract liability is recognised when a payment is received from the customer before the Group transfers goods or services to
the customer. As these are contracts that the Group expects, and has the ability, to fulfil through delivery of a non-financial
item, these are presented as advance from customers and are recognised as revenue as and when control of respective goods is
transferred, or service is provided to the customers under the agreements.

(ii) Vendor programs

Funds received from vendors for product rebates and marketing/promotion programs are recorded as adjustments to product
costs, according to the nature of the program. The Group accrues rebates or other vendor incentives as earned based on sales of
qualifying products or as services are provided in accordance with the terms of the related program.

(iif) Other income -Custom Duty Credit Scrip
The discount on Custom Duty Credit Scrip is recognised on purchase of such Scrip.

(f) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {(and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in subsidiaries and branches where the group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
subsidiaries and branches where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a iegally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(g) Leases (As a Lessee)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present

value of the following lease payments:

« fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date

¢ amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees

* the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and
% e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising tha

e 8
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Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which
is generally the case for leases of the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

if a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the Group use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

* the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

* any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
* any initial direct costs

* restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

{h) Business Combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

- fair values of the assets transferred

- liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business

- equity interests issued by the group

- fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

- consideration transferred

- amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity

- acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If thase amounts are less than the fair value of
the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business
combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve.

(i) Impairment of non financial assets:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(k) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of

collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective.i
method, less loss allowance.

7




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED . , I -
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 | \ /\ _L l —

{I) Inventories

Traded goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of
inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on weighted average basis. Costs are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

{m) Investments (Other than Investments in Subsidiaries) and other financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss)
e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Recognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sale the financial asset.

(iif) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

(iii) (a) Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other Income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in statement of profit and loss.

* Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is

recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income.
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(iii) (b) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group's management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

(v) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

* the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the
cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Group has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Group
retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

(vi) Interest income on bank deposits and unwinding of interest on security deposits paid

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of financial
instrument, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating EIR the Group estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider expected
credit losses.

(n) Derivative Instruments

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative investments. Derivatives do not meet the hedge
accounting criteria and hence they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for accounting purposes and are accounted for at FVPL.
They are presented as current assets or liabilities to the extent they are expected to be settled within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

(o) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

(p) Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Alf
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses). Estimated useful life of assets used for
depreciation is as follows:

Nature of asset

Computers - 3 years

Office equipment- 5 years

Furniture and fixtures - 5 to 10 years
Vehicles- 5 to 8 years

Networks and Servers - 6 years
Others - Demo equipment's - 4 years

The estimated useful lives of furniture and fixtures and vehicles is lower than the useful life prescribed under Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.

(q) Intangible Assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, which in our case are the operating segments.

(ii) Computer Software
Computer Software has a finite useful life and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors is capitalised. Subsequent costs associated with
maintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license fees and cost of
implementation/system integration services, where applicable.

(ili) Amortisation Method and Period

Computer software are amortised on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of 5 years,
from the date they are available for use. Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each
financial vear end.

(r) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(s) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss
as other gains/(losses).

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or
part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 montbhs after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement
on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date,
the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
consolidated financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.
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(t) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(u) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

(v) Employee benefits

{1) Short term obligation:

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(1) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The Group has liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service. These obligations are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using
the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to
occur.

(i) Post-employment obligations: The group operates the following post-employment schemes:

(i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity:

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms
of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement
of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
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(Iv) Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via share-appreciation rights. Liabilities for the Group’s share
appreciation rights are recognised as employee benefit expense over the relevant service period. The liabilities are remeasured
to fair value at each reporting date and are presented as employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(V) Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(w) Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

{x) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

» the profit attributable to owners of the Group

* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

* the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares

* the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(y) Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for impairment, if any. Investments in subsidiaries are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of investments exceeds its recoverable amount.

(z) Events after Reporting Date

Where events occurring after balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of reporting period, the
impact of such events is adjusted in consolidated financial statements. Otherwise, events after balance sheet date of material
size or nature are only disclosed.

(aa) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule llI, unless otherwise stated.

Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally
assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(i) Impairment of trade receivables:

Impairment of trade receivables is primarily estimated based on prior experience with and the past due status of receivables,
based on factors that include ability to pay and payment history. The assumptions and estimates applied for determining the
provision for impairment are reviewed periodically.

(ii) Estimation of Provision for Inventory

The Group’s inventory levels are based on the projections of future demand and market conditions. Any sudden decline in
demand and/or rapid product improvements and technological changes could cause us to have excess and/or obsolete
inventory. On an ongoing basis, the Group reviews for estimated excess or obsolete inventory and makes appropriate provision
to inventory to bring to its estimated net realizable value based upon forecasts of future demand and market conditions.

(iii) Share-based payments
The fair valuation of employee share appreciation rights requires use of certain assumptions and estimates as gi

& \\
&

= 0 s

——




"UOIIUBAUOD JJO BUIPUNOJ MO[3q BJE SJUNOWE 3y} Jey) S3l0Uap 0, #

809 0 ST T Ot 13 €9 (413 €202 YICIN TE 1B SV
995 T 9t - &4 BT (444 €C0¢C Y2 IeN TE e SY
junowe SulAue) 1N
({14 6T LT = [44 €7 191 - €20C Ydie\ T€ 1e se uejeq
& - - - - - - - |esodsig
60T T L B I€ 1T 6S - Jead ay) Buunp uonenaidag
€81 81 (118 = 4 (44 a0t - 220Z YdIEBA TE 1e Se dduejeq
E = - - 5 - - E jesodsiq
S6 [4 S - 0z 9 [4:] 5 JeaA ay3 Suunp uoneaidaq
88 91 S = 174 9 oY - TZ0Z Y2JeNl T 1€ Se aduejeg
uoreasdap pajejnwnidy
0¢Z6 6T LT T (A1) ! 8¢ vee [4:13 €20C Y21\ 1€ 1. se duejeg
= - E N = - - - jesodsiq
8GT = 911 = 143 8 - - suonippy
€T = (44 T 0 0 - = Aseipisqns jo uonisinbae ug
6vL 6T 14 - 89 o€ vee (413 €20Z YIIRIAl T€ 1B se dduejeg
= = s = N = = = |esodsiq
veT - - = 0¢ S 60T - suonippy
S19 6T )4 - 14 174 STT Z9¢ T20Z Yd1eAl T€ 1€ se dduejeg
(3500 pawaaq) Junowe Suihiie)

sainixi4 SI9AIDS Juswdinba s wawdinba
|eloL SIPIYIA pue ainjiuing | pue SyJOMIaN sia1ndwo) IHO ow(q - SJ3Y10 pueq siejnaiyed

(syxeq up 'sy)

=1 1TVAI

uawdinb3 pue jue|d ‘Aviadold ‘eg

S1UIWIEIS [e1douBUlY PIIEPIOSU0) 3Y3 Jo Wed Suiwioy 330N

Q31INIT ILVARId SNOLLNTOSOANI ANTVYAI




=1 T1VA!

*paJinbai jou s) SuiaBe Jo aunso|asip 93uay |IN St 220Z ‘TE U4 / £20T ‘TE UdJe uo se ssaiBoud-ul-yiom [eyided ay] (2
dnoup ay1 Aq Aundas se padpajd Juswdinba pue jue|d ‘Ajiadoud uo uonew.ojui Joy T 930U 335 (q

sj@sse 3|qi3uejul pue Juawdinba pue juejd ‘Ajadoud jo uoiisinbae 3y Jo) SJUSWIILILWIOD |ENIIBIIUOD JO 3UNSOISIP JOJ (q) HE 10U a5 :suoiedijqo |enjoesjuo) (e

‘UOI3USAUOI JO SUIpUNOJ MO|aq 3B SJUNOWE 3y} 1.y} salousp 0, #

9L

€9

€9

€C0C Yd1eN 1€ 1e sy

0¢

07

S9

S9

St

St

(114

0¢

114

0¢

CC0C YaieN TE 1e sy
junowe SulAue) 19N

€207 Y21\l TE 3€ Se duejeg
|esodsig

JedA 8y3 Joj uoles|owWy
Z20T YaIe £ 1€ se dduejeg
Jesodsiq

JeaA ay) Joj uonesiowy
T20C Yd1e 1€ Je se asuejeg
uonesiJowe pare|NWnIY

€20¢C YoJeAl TE Je se aduejeg
|esodsig

suonippy

Aseipisgns jo uoiyisinbay uQ
2T0Z Yd1e TE 1€ Se dduejeg
|esodsia

suonippy

TZ0Z Yd1e\ 1€ 1e se aduejeg

(1s0d> pawaaq) unowe SuiAue)

Il1MpooD

leloL

21emyos

sJejnaiued

{syxeq uj "sy)

sjasse 3|qiduelu} ‘qg

SIUDWIIE]S |EIDURUL PIlepljosuo) 3y} jo Led Sulwioy S210N

Q3LIWIT ILVAINd SNOLLNTOSO4NI INTVYAI




"UCJIUBAUOD JJo SuipuNOI MO|3Q 3JB SJUNOWE 3y 1BY] SA10U3P 0, #

(sasuadxa Jay3o uj
LT 1% papn|oul) s3ses| wJud3l-Joys o1 3uile|al asuadxy
[4° €T (s1502 ®oueuiy ul papn|aut) asuadxa 159431u|
(S3P1yan pue sainixi} pUe ainjiuiny ‘suIp|ing)
Sqt 66¢ $195Se 9sn-J0-1y81s Jo ad1eyd uoneaudsq
CZOT YIMBINTE| €20Z YdIeN TE
je sy je sy

(syxe u| "sy)
:s9sea| 01 Bune|a. syunowe Suimo||0) 8Y1 SMOYS SsO) Jo 31joud jo Juawalels ay] (i)

8L¢ L26'C |elol
6¥T ¥279'e saill|iqel] 9sea| Jalin) UON
6¢CT €0€ sanljiqel| ssea| JuaLn)
CC0T Y IR TE | EZ0TZ YdIieN TE

e sy 1B sy siejndiyed
(sye uj "sy) :S3131|Iqe]| 9Se3| JU3JINI-Uou pue Jualind jo dnyealg ayy (i
Lze 956°C
LT 6V SIPIYSA
6T (45 $3JN3XI pUB 34nuIng
18T G68'C suip|ing
CCOZT YMBN TE | €C0C Y2 TE

e sy je sy sjosse asn-}o-3ydiy

(suxe1 uj "sy)
:s9sea| 01 Bunie|al syunowe Buimo|jo) 3yl SMoYs 133ys ddueleq ay] (1)

"JedA ABAd %0T 01 %S Aq sjuswAed asea| ay)

Ul 8s5e3.0Ul Ue Joj 3pino.d sjualwaaige asea) ay| “sailed Y3 Jo JuawaaiFe [enInw uo paseq poliad JaYLINy B 10} PIMIURI 3G ABW PUB SYIUOW §OT O3 9€ JO poLad e o) 2B pUB 5|qe||9IUBd-Uou e
S35e3| BY ] "S3|2IYIA pue S3.NIX) pue unjuiny ‘sasiwa.d 3d10 Joy sjuawaduelle asea| Sunelsdo ojul passiua sey dnoup ay] *23ssa) e st dNoJD) 9yl SJaYM SaSE3| S04 UOJIEWLIOJUI SapIAcLd 910U SIy)
sasead b

S1UAWILL]S [eIDURUY PI1RPIIOSUO) Y} JO Lied Sulwioy SaION

= 1VAL

Q31INIT ILVARYd SNOLLNTOSO4ANI INTVAI



=(1TTVAI

Lee 956°C pu?3 2y} 1e duejeg
(SST) (662) uonepaidag
- (19) suonajag
[4 680°€ suonIppy
08¢ LTt 8ujuui8aq ays 1e aouejeg
€C0Z Y eN TE | €202 Yo BN TE
1e sy 1esy siejndiued
(syxeq uj 'sy) iSMOJ|0} SE S| papua JEaA oy SULINP S13SSY NOY Ul JUSWIAOW Y] (IA
8.2 LT6'T pu3 2y} 1e duejeg
(o£1) (og¢g) SanI[Iqel| 95ea| JO JUaWAey
[43 €T pouad ay1 Suunp panJaae 3503 aoueulq
= (zL) suonsjag
4 826'C SuOIIPPY
1494 8L¢ BujuuiBaq ayj je aduejeg
€T0C Y. T€ | €20T Y2 1N TE
ie sy lesy siejndiued

(syxe uj 'sy)

ISMO||0} SE S| papud JEaA 3y} SULINP Sa1RI|IQEI| 95E3] Ul JUIWIAOW By (A

"JU3sSUOJ [ENINW UO Paseq d|qesidIaxa aJe p|ay suoido UOIBUIWIS) pUe UoISUdIXa Jo Ajuofew ay] “suoijesado s,dnolo
3y} ul pasn s1asse ay) SuiBeuew Jo swid) u) Aujiqix3)y jeuonie.ado 3siWIXew 01 pasn 3e 353y ‘SISea| dINHuIN4 pue Sulp|ing JO JAQLUNU @ Ul PEPNJaUl 1. SUo)IdO UOIIBUIWIS] PUB UOISUIIXI

suolndo uoneulw.al pue uoisualxy (Al

SJUIWLE]S [EIDUBUL PIIBPI|OSUO) Y3 Jo Med Suiwioy s3joN

A3iliNIT ILVARId SNOLLNTOSO4ANI INTVAI




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

IVALUI=

5a Other Investments (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Notes forming part of the Ci d financial

Investment in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (Fully paid-up, Unquoted) valued at FVTPL
Nil (31 March 2022: 2,950,000) Compulsorily Convertible Debenture of face value Rs.100 each issued by iUnite - -
Technologies Private Limited

Total - .

Note: The Group had subscribed to 2,950,000 Compulsorily Convertible Debenture {(CCD) with a face value of Rs.100 each, issued by iUnite Technologies Private Limited on 10 April
2018, Such debentures were Convertible within 10 years from the date of issuance, at a price determined by an Independent valuer appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Group, The CCD bear an interest rate of 0.001% and interest shall accrue and it will be converted into Equity Shares on the Conversion Date. In the current year pursuant to a scheme

S5h Current Investment (Rs. In Lakhs)
Partlculars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Investments in Mutual funds at FVTPL {Quoted)
27,612 Units (31 March, 2022 - 91,562 units) in LIC MF Liquid Fund - Regular Plan- Growth 1,115 3,503
Nil {31 March, 2022 - 3,083,810 units) in LIC MF Savings Fund - Regular Plan- Growth - 1,000
Total 1,115 4,503 |
6a Lpans (Non current) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
[Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loans to Employees 602 600
Total 602 600 |
6b  Loans (Current) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Unsecured, constdered good unless otherwlse stated)
Loans to Employees 1 -
|Total 1 -
7a QOther Financial Assets (Non-current) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
- Rent Deposlts 182 B0
- Electricity Deposits 1 1
- Deposits with banks with maturity more than 12 months from balance sheet date* 122 25
- Other Deposits 18 -
Total 323 10=6_
*Deposits with banks includes Rs.98 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : Rs.24 Lakhs) deposited with banks as Margin Money Deposit for Buyers Credit, Bill discounting, Letter of Credit, Bank
Guarantees issued as Collateral Security.
7b Other financial assets (Current) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Unsecured and Considered good unless otherwise stated)
Other Deposits 6 14
Other Receivable from related parties (Refer Note 38) - 61
Vendor receivables 479 171
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 17 10
Total 502 ﬁ
Note: Vendor receivables pertalns to marketing expenses reimbursable from Original Equipment Manufactures.
8 Deferred tax assets (Net)
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Partlculars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax assets in relatlon to:
Property, plant and equipment depreciation and Intangible assets amortisation 53 51
Allowance for Expected credit loss on Trade receivables 174 185
Retirement benefits and compensated absences 63 40
Lease liabllities 737 60
Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights 68 17
Security deposit 30
Carried Forward Losses 138
Deferred tax llability in relation to:
Right of use assets 744 57
Security deposit 20
Total 519} 2=7(3]

of arrangement the Compulsory Convertible debenture was extinguished. Refer Note 36 for details,
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Notes forming part of the C lidated financial
Other non-current assets (Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Balance with Government Authorities (Payments made under protest) 120 141
Capital Advances 101 35
Total 221 176

==

Other current assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{Unsecured and Considered good unless otherwise stated)
Pre-Paid Expenses 137 26
Balances with Government Authorities 3,559 705
Custom Duty Credit Scrip 332 589
Advance to suppliers for goods and services 719 82
Interest receivable on income tax refund - 44
Others 0 21
Total 4,747 1,467 |
#"0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.
Inventories (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Stock-in-trade 15,396 2,388
Total 15,396 2,888

*Stock-in-trade includes goods in transit Rs.20 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : Rs.71 Lakhs)
**Reversal of write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted to Rs. 347 Lakhs in the current year whereas there was write-downs of inventories to
net realisable value amounting to Rs. 1,116 Lakhs in the previous year, These were recognised and included in ‘Changes in inventories of Stock-in-trade’ in

statement of profit and loss.

Inventories under broad Category (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
Sale of products* 9,009 1,147
Software and Services 6,387 1,741
|Total 15,396 2,888

*Products consists of hardware, motherboard and Network cards.

Trade Receivables {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade receivables considered good — secured - -
Trade receivables considered good — unsecured 70,858 43,462
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables — credit impaired - -
Total 70,858 43,462
Loss Allowance 692 735
Total 70,166 42,727

No trade or other recelvable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Includes receivables due from related parties as disclosed in Note 38,

Trade receivable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023 [Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from the due date
Unbllled Not Due Lessthan6 |6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months 1year years
(1} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good a8 51,692 15,759 2,180 1,039 61 66 70,805
(I} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered doubtful - - - - - - = -
{iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - - 53 53
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - - - - -
Trade recelvable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from the due date
Unbitled Not Due Lessthan6 |6 months-| 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
h: 1 year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good - 33,234 8,058 1,381 290 111 194 43,268
[li) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered doubtful - - - - - - - -
(lii} Disputed Trade Receivabies - considered good - - - - - - 194 194
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - - - -
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12a Cash and cash equivalents {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Cash on Hand 2 2
Balances with banks

- In Current Accounts 4,551 3,132

- Deposit with Banks with less than 3 months initial maturity 1,500 -
Total 6,053 3,134

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between ane day and three months, depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

12b Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Deposits with banks with maturity of 12 months or less from balance sheet date* 1,943 1,950
Total 1,943 1!950

*Deposits with banks includes Rs.340 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : Rs.385 Lakhs) deposited with banks as Margin Maney Deposit for Buyers Credit, Bill discounting, Letter of Credit, Bank
Guarantees issued as Collateral Security.

13 Income Tax Assets [Net) (Non-Current) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance income tax 2,023 2,969
Total 2,023 2,969 |
14 (i} Equity Share Capital (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Authorised share capital

|5.000,000 (31 March 2022: SEOOOEOOOI Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 500 500

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

4,210,715 (31 March 2022: 4,211,067) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid- up 421 421

Total lg:_! 421 |
14 (ii) Preference Share capital (As. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Compulsorlly Convertible Preference shares

Authorised share capltal

r 000,000 !31 March 2022: 25000!000! Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10 each 200 200
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

1,250,025 (31 March 2022: 1,250,025) Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid- up 125 125
Total 125 125
(a) Movement in Equity shares

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Number Value In Number Value in Rs Lakhs

Rs Lakhs

Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,211,067 421 4,211,067 421
Increase / (Decrease) during the year (352) 0* - -
Balance at the end of the year 4,210,715 421 4,211,067 421

# "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.
Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement, the shares of the Group held by iUnite Technologies Private Limited were trasferred to the shareholders of iUnite Technologies Private
Limited. Refer Note 36 for details.

(b) Movement in Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 |
Number Value in Number Value In Rs Lakhs
Rs Lakhs
Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,250,025 125 1,250,025 125
Increase / (Decrease) during the year - - - .
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,250,025 125 1,250,025 125

(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares:
1) The Group has one class of equlty shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. They entitle the holder to
participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up the Group in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

11) The Group has one class of preferences shares i.e, Series A Compulsorily Convertible preference shares { "CCPS" ) of face value Rs. 10 each.

(a) The CCPS shall confer on the holder, the right to receive, in priority to the holders of equity shares, the dividend as when the Board declares a dividend.

{b) The dividend on CCPS shail be cumulative.

{c) The holder of CCPS is entitled to receive equity share in an agreed ratlo at the earliest of first closing date (i,e. April 30, 2019) or at the end of 19 years.
{d} CCPS when converted into equity shares, shall rank pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Group in all respects.

{e) The Group has received an intimation from the CCPS holders that they have not exercised the option of conversion to equity as at March 31, 2023.
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(d) Shares held by holding Group and the subsidiary of holding Group:

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
IEguig Shares held hy iUnite Technolagies Private Limited (the halding company; . 2,475,352
{e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity shares in the Sroup:
HName of Shareholder As at 31 March 3023 As at 31 March 2022
No of shares % Mo of %
fUnite Technologies Private Limited- the holding company . - 2,475,352 59%
Sundara { Mauritius) Limited 643,133 15% 643,133 15%
Sunil Kumar Pillai 809,377 18% 339,127 B%
Krishna Raj Sharma 522,144 12% 150,894 4%
Hilda Sunil Pillai 359,768 9% - 0%
Srinivasan Sriram 338,901 8% %
Venkatesh R 310,821 7% 0%
Subodh Anchan 285,728 7% 0%
| oy Abraham Yohannan 268,124 6% 0%
{f) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Compulsorily Canvertible Preference shares:
Name of Sharehalder As at 31 March 2023 As ot 31 March 2022
No of sharas Mo of sharef %
Sundara { Mauritius) Limited

{g) Shares held by the pramoters at the end of the year and movemant

Promoter Name As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Change during the year
No. of Shares| % oftotal | No. of Shares | % of total ended 31 March 2023
shares shares

1) Sunil Kumar Pillai 809,377 19% 339,127 8% 11%

2) Krishna Raj Sharma 532144 12% 150,894 4% 8%
[Z! Snnivasan Snram 338,901 8% 91,401 2% 6%

Total 1,670,432 39% 581,422 14% 25%

15 Other Equity

Particulars Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

. Securities Premlum (Refer Note a below)

Balance as at the beginning of the year 8,538 8,538
Add : Premium on Shares issued during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 8,538 8,538

b. Retained eamnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year 14,966 10,526
Net Profit for the yaar 5,999 4,440
items of other income directly In d i

ements of post: ! benefit obligation, net of Tax 0] (0}
Balence as st the end of the year 20,965 14966
c. Deemed Caplital Contrlbution {Refer Note 36) 24 -

d. Other reserves (Foreign currency translation reserve] {Refer Note b below)

Balance as at the beginning of the year {1) -
Currency tr ion adj relating to idiary {4 [1}
Balance a at the and of the year 5 1
Total 29,522 | 23,503
#"0" denotes that the are below off

(a) Nature and purpose of Security premium

Securities premium is used ta record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve Is utilised in accordance with the provisians of the Act.

(b) Nsture and purpase of Fareign currency translation reserve
Fareign currency Translation reserve includes all resulting exchange differences arising from {a) translating the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operatlons into Indian rupees using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reparting period and (b) translating income and expense items of the foreign operations at the average exchange rates for the periad.

16 Current tax liabllities {Net]

Particulars Asat

31 March 2023

Provision for taxation 253

Total 253
—

17a Non-current pravisions At. In Lakhs]
Particulars As ot As at

31March2023 | 31 Murch2022 |

Pravision for employee benefits

| Provision for gratuity {Refer Note 33) 233
Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights (Refer Note 41) 272
Total 505

17b Shart - Term Prowisions
Particulars Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 33) 20 19
Provision for compensated absences {Refer Note 33) 57 2

Total 17 51
el
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Non-Current borrowings (Rs, In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured Loans
Rupee term loan from Banks (b) 19 -
Loans from Financial institutions {c) 34 .
Total 53 -
Current borrowings (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loans repayable on demand
Secured Loans
Working capital loan from banks (a) 4,891 1,700
Unsecured Loans
Current maturities of long term rupee term loan from banks {b) 28 -
Loans from Financial Institutions (c) 17 -
Intercorporate loan (d) 59 -
Total 4,995 1,700 |
Notes:

(a) {i) The Company has availed working capital loans from Company’s bankers which is secured by first charge on a pari-passu basis on the whole of current assets of the Company
including inventories, trade receivables, outstanding monies, etc. both present and future including movable fixed assets of the Company, both present and future, collateral security
on immovable properties and personal guarantee of the directors. The interest rate on the working capital loan ranges between 5.4% to 8.3 % per annum.

{a)(ii) ASPL info Services Private Limited (a subsidiary) (ASPL) has availed overdraft facility from IDFC First Bank at interest rate of 10.5% per annum computed on a monthly basis on
the actual amount utilized and are repayable on demand. These are secured by exclusive charge over entire current asset including stocks, book debts and movable fixed assets, both

present and future of ASPL.

{a) (iii) Asia iValue Pte. Ltd. {a subsidiary) (Asia iValue) has availed the bank overdraft which is secured by corporate guarantee from the Company for an amount of not less than
US$1,050,000. The interest is charged at the bank's prime rate plus 1.0% per annum. The effective interest rate during the year is 6.5%.

(b) Following are the details of term loans from banks avalled by ASPL:

Lender Interest rate |Repayment |Term of the loan
terms

'KLtak Mahindra Bank 8% Monthly 3 years

HDFC Bank 16% Monthiy 3 years

IDFC First Bank Ltd 16% Monthly 3 years

Standard Chartered Bank 14% Monthiy 4 years

Standard Chartered Bank 8% Monthly S5 years

(c) Following are the details of term loans from financial Institutions availed by ASPL:

Lender Interest rate 1Repavment Term of the loan
terms

Bajaj Finance Ltd 16% Monthly 3 years

Poonawala Fincorp Ltd 16% Monthly 3 years

(d) ASPL has availed inter-corporate loan from Vltage Systems Private Limited at interest rate of 12% p.a.

Trade Payables (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 35) 8
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 65,085 31,115
(c) Trade payable to related parties {Refer Note 38) = 10
Total 65,093 31,125
Trade payable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023 (Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from the due date
Unbilled Not Due | Less than 1 Year | 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
(i} Undisputed-Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 8 - - - 8
(ii) Undisputed-Others 7,351 46,777 10,250 351 36 320 65,085
(i) Disputed dues - Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - . - - - - -
Trade ble ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Partlculars (o] ding for following ds from the due date
Unbilled Not Due | Less than 1 Year | 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
{i) Undisputed-Micro enterprises and small enterprises - . - - -
(i) Undisputed-Others 2,703 25,324 2,667 46 2 383 31,125
(iii) Disputed dues - Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - = 2 = = s
Other flnancial liabilities (current) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Derivative liabilities {Foreign currency forward contracts) 67 24
Other payables 132 86
Total 199 1104
W2
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Notes forming part of the C | d flnanclal
Contract llabilities (Rs. In Lakhs)
| Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance from Customers 48 94
Unearned revenue 212 687
Total 260 781
Reconclliation of contract liabilltles for the periods presented: {Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the year 781 70
Amount recelved during the year against which revenue has
not been recognized a2 737
Revenue recognized during the year 563 26
Balance at the end of the year 260 781
Other Current Liabillties {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory Dues 3,690 3,213
Total 3,690 3,213
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Revenue from operations (Rs. In Lakhs)
i For the period ended For the year ended
particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from Contracts with customers
Domestic Sales
Sale of products* 62,215 36,171
Software and Services 95,553 76,421
157,768 112,592
Exports Sales
Sale of products* 11,248 5,551
Software and Services 12,050 11,492
23,298 17,043
Total 181,066 129,635
*Products consists of hardware, motherboard and Network cards.
Other Income (Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the period ended For the year ended
particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest Income from bank deposits 198 95
Net Gain on Investments carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss [Includes 123 36
Net Unrealised Fair Value Gains arisen during the year of Rs. 59 Lakhs (Previous
Year - Rs. 3.3 Lakhs)]
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 7 6
Gain on Termination of Leases 18 =
Interest on Income tax refunds 135 44
Net Fair value {loss) / gain on derivatives not designated as hedges (67) (24)
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 129 294
Income from Custom Duty Credit Scrip 5 123
Other Non-operating income 456 219
Total 1,004 793
Purchases of Stock-in-trade (Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the period ended | For the year ended
paticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Purchase of traded goods
Sale of products* 60,476 32,537
Software and Services 115,254 84,045
Total 175,730 116,582

*Products consists of hardware, motherboard and Network cards.

Changes in inventory of Stock-in-Trade

(Rs. In Lakhs)

icul For the period ended For the year ended
particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Closing balance 15,396 2,888
Less: Opening balance 2,888 3,321
Net (Increase) / decrease (12,508) 433
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Employee Benefits Expense

IVALU=

(Rs. In Lakhs)

. For the period ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) Salaries and Wages 3,643 2,351
(b) Contributions to Provident and other funds (Refer Note 33) 136 65
(c) Gratuity expense (Refer Note 33) 35 24
(d) Staff welfare expenses 95 23
(e) Employee stock appreciation rights {(Refer note 41) 204 68
Total 4,113 2,531
Finance Costs (Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the period ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on borrowings from banks and financial institutions 200 170
Interest on Intercorporate loan 6 -
Interest charge on lease liabilities 123 32
Interest on Bill Discounting 425 686
Interest on delayed payment of Statutory Dues 20 5
Interest on others 0 3
Total 774 896
#"0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.
Depreciation and amortisation expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
\ For the period ended For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3a) 109 95
Depreciation of right of use assets (Refer Note 4) 299 155
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 3b) 2 E
Total 410 250
Other Expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the period ended For the year ended
JLanticulS6s 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 1,329 355
Professional and Consultancy Charges 793 329
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 24 6
Electricity Charges 31 10
Rent 43 17
Rates & Taxes 44 13
Travelling & Conveyance 349 48
Telephone & Internet Expenses 25 21
Bank Charges 103 69
Auditor's Remuneration
-for Statutory audit 24 22
-for Other Services 3 -
Loss allowance made / (reversed) for ECL on Trade receivables 331 179
Bad debts Written off 663 169
Less: Loss allowance for ECL on Trade receivables (Utilised) (374) -
Commission 1,582 2,125
Software Subscription Charges 148 34
Insurance 113 118
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 37) 83 77
Miscellaneous expenses 4“_'{'-\_*.‘""“ 206 138
Y.
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

Note 31 - Taxation

IVALLUI=

{a) Income tax expense (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current tax
Current tax on Profit for the year 2,131 1,638
Tax adjustments for earlier years (Net) 66 5
Total current tax expenses 2,197 1,643
Deferred tax
Decrease /(Increase) in deferred tax assets (825) (40)
(Decrease) /Increase in deferred tax liabilities 667 (37)
Total deferred tax expenses/(benefit) {158) {77)
Income tax expense 2,039 1,566
{b) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplies by India tax rate
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit from operations before income tax expense 8,031 6,006
India tax rate 25.2% 25.2%
Tax at India tax rate 2,021 1,511
Tax adjustments for earlier years (Net) 66 5
Tax on Profit from operations before income tax of Asia iValue Pte. Ltd for which there is no income tax (17) 45
expense in the current year considering utilisation of brought forward losses
Deferred Tax asset created (after the acquisition date of ASPL) on the tax losses of ASPL for the period April (45)
1, 2022 to February 16, 2023
CSR Expenses permanently disallowed 21 10
Others [(3)] (5)
Income tax expense 2,039 1,566

# "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

(C) Deferred tax assets / liabilities as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

IVALLU=

Particulars Opening Addition on Amount credited / Amount credited / Net recognised
balance Acquisition of (charged) in Profitand (charged) in Other Deferred tax asset
Subsidiary Loss A/c Comprehensive Income and Liability

Deferred tax assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment depreciation and 51 0 2 - 53

Intangible assets amortisation

Allowance for Expected credit loss on Trade 185 - (11) 174

receivables

Retirement benefits and compensated absences 40 9 14 0 63

Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights 17 - 51 68

Lease liabilities 60 - 677 - 737

Security deposit - - 30 - 30

Carried Forward Losses - 76 62 - 138

Deferred tax liability in relation to:

Right of use assets 57 - 687 - 744

Security deposit 20 - (20) - -

Total 276 85 158 0 519

#"0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.

{d) Deferred tax assets / liabilities as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Opening Additionon  Amount credited / Amount credited / Net recognised
balance Acquisition of (charged)in Profitand (charged) in Other Deferred tax asset

Subsidiary Loss A/c Comprehensive iIncome and Liability

Deferred tax assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment depreciation and 47 - 4 - 51

Intangible assets amortisation

Allowance for Expected credit loss on Trade 140 - 45 - 185

receivables

Retirement benefits and compensated absences 34 - 6 (0) 40

Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights - - 17 - 17

Lease liabilities 91 - (31) 60

Deferred tax liability in relation to:

Right of use assets 95 - (38) - 57

Security deposit 18 - 2 - 20

Total 199 - 77 (0) 276

# "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

IVALLI=

Additional Information to the Financial Statements

34 a) Contingent liabilities

35

36

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022

As at

Particulars
31 March 2023

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt

Customs 169 137
-Pertain to demands raised by the Principal Commissioner of Customs of Delhi &
Bengaluru. These demands relate to short payment of customs duty on account of
incorrect classification of such imported materials, for the purpose of computation of
custom duty

-In respect of above, it is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash
outflow owes, if any, pending resolution of the respective proceedings. The Group does

not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above.

b) Commitments:
i) Capital commitments (net of advance):
There are no Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period or as at 31 March 2022

i) Other Commitments:
There are no other commitments at the end of the reporting period or as at 31 March 2022

Disclosures required for Micro and Small Enterprises:
The Group has certain dues to suppliers registered under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006"
('"MSMED Act'). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars asat Esjat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 8 -

unpaid at the year end

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at
the year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the 4 -
appointed day during the year

Interest paid other than section 16 of MSMED Act to suppliers registered under the - -
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid under section 16 of MSMED Act to suppliers registered under the MSMED - -
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, for 0 -
payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years - -

# "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.

iValue Infosolutions Private Limited (Transferee Company) and iUnite Technologies Private Limited (Transferor Company) had filed
an application under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation on 14th December
2020 before the National Company Law Tribunal, Bengaluru Bench (“NCLT”). Group has received an order dated June 8, 2022
whereby NCLT has approved the above scheme and hence the balances of the transferor company has been included in the
financial statements of the transferee company in the current year from the effective date as per the order.Considering that the
acquisition of group of assets acquired pursuant to the amalgamation did not constitute a business, the Company identified and
recognised the individual identifiable assets acquired (Rs 723 lakhs) and liabilities assumed (Rs 700 lakhs) as at the effective date
_assets at’:qg{ired over liabilities assumed as “Deemed capital contribution” under “Other Equity” of Rs 23

lakhs.
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Additional Information to the Financial Statements

37 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

IVALLI=

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended |For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 82 75
(b) Amount spent during the year on:
- Construction / acquisition of any asset - -
- On purposes other than above
a) In cash 82 77

b) Yet to be paid

(c) Shortfall at the end of the year

(d) Total of previous years shortfall

(e) Details of related party transactions

(f) Accrual towards unspent obligations
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Related party transactions
Details of related parties:

IVALU=

Name of related parties

Description of relationship
(i) Immediate and Ultimate Holding Company

1) Sunil Kumar Pillai- Managing Director
2) Krishna Raj Sharma- Director
3) Kabir Kishin Thakur- Director

(i} Key management personnel

1) Asia iValue Pte. Ltd
2) iValue S L (Private) Limited (From 06 July 2021)

{iii) Wholly owned Subsidiary

(iv) Subsidiary
2) ASPL Info Services (FZE) - Subsidiary

(v) Enterprise exercising significant influence  |Sundara Mauritius Ltd

iUnite Technologies Private Limited (amalgamated on 08 June 2022)

3) Ivalue Infosolutions Sea Co., LTD (From 24 March 2022)

1) ASPL Info Services Private Limited (From 16 February 2023)

A. The following transactions occurred with related parties:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year
31 March 2023

For the year
31 March 2022

1. Sales and purchases of goods and services

a) Sales of stock in trade:
Holding Company (iUnite Technologies Private Limited )

b) Purchase of stock in trade:
Holding Company (iUnite Technologies Private Limited )

2. Other transactions

a) Reimbursement of Expenses from:-
Enterprise exercising significant influence
Holding Company (iUnite Technologies Private Limited }

b) Key management personnel compensation
Sunil Kumar Pillai
Krishna Raj Sharma

*As the liabilities for defined benefit plans are provided on actuarial basis for the Group as a whole, the
amounts pertaining to Key Management Personnel are not included.

c) Other Non-Operating Income:
Enterprise exercising significant influence

3. Outstanding balances:

a) Trade Receivables:
Holding Company (iUnite Technologies Private Limited )

b) Trade Payables:
Holding Company (iUnite Technologies Private Limited )

c) Other receivables
Holding Company (iUnite Technologies Private Limited )
Enterprise exercising significant influence

d) Salary and reimbursement related Payable to Key management personnel
Sunil Kumar Pillai
Krishna Raj Sharma

13

81
70

543

10

44

59
55

600

10

44
17

# "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED ™ -
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements ' \, /\ l_ l ‘ —

39

40

Notes:
a) The transactions with related parties were at normal commercial terms. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest
free and settlement occurs in cash.

b) The Director's of the Group have given personal guarantees to Bank's against borrowings made by the Group.

c) There were no loans due by directors or other officers of the Group or any of them severally or jointly with any other persons or amounts
due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a member.

Earnings Per Share

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31 March| ended 31 March
2023 2022
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic and diluted EPS (Rs. 5,999 4,440
In Lakhs)
Weighted average number of equity shares {Nos.) for calculating basic earnings per share 4,210,715 4,211,067
Add: Adjustment for calculation of diluted earnings per share (Compulsorily Convertible Preference 1,143,320 1,143,320
shares)
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) for calculating Diluted earnings per share 5,354,035 5,354,387
Basic EPS attributable to the equity holders of the Company (Rs.) 142 105
Diluted EPS attributable to the equity holders of the Company (Rs.) 112 83
Nominal value of shares (Rs.) 10 10
Disclosure of segment

a) The Group is primarily engaged in a single business of providing i) Digital Asset Management and Protection and (ii) Software and Allied
Support and is governed by similar set of returns

b) Entity wide disclosure:
i) The Group is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers is shown
below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended 31 | For the year
March 2023 ended 31 March
2022
India 157,768 112,580
Rest of the world 23,298 17,055
Total 181,066 129,635

ii) The amount of non-current assets of the Group {excluding Financial Assets, income tax assets and deferred tax assets) located in India
and rest of the world is shown below:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended 31 | For the year
March 2023 ended 31 March
2022
India 4,613 989
Rest of the warld 18 -
Total 4,631 989

iii) No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues from external customers during the year ended 31 March, 2022.
Revenues of approximately INR 18,284 lakhs for the current year is derived from a single external customer mainly from India.

harter
& ‘ﬁ ed’qct,‘o
AMAC - 4362 ()
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43

44

45

46

Share based payment Share appreciation rights (SAR):

The Group has granted 59,040 SAR to certain eligible employees in the previous year. Further it granted additional 1,44,060 SAR in the
current year. These are split into 40% linked to retention condition and 60% linked to performance condition. Out of these 20,064 SAR
lapsed and 1,08,912 SAR vested in the current year and with 74,124 SAR yet to be vested as at March 31, 2023. These SAR have a strike
price of Rs 10 and Rs 700.

The retention linked SAR shall vest at end of one year from the Relevant Date of the Grant. The performance linked SAR shall vest equally
over a period of five years. The vesting will be one year from the completion of the respective financial Year for which performance is
evaluated.

Exercise Period will be such time period during a Liquidity Event, as may be decided by the Compensation Committee, from time to time.

For the SAR's issued in the current year the date of grant of option is 02 March 2023 and the expiry of option is 01 March 2027 and for the
SAR's issued in previous year the date of grant of option is 1 October 2021 and date of expiry of option is 30 September 2026.

Expenses towards SAR's is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the vesting period of the SAR's and a
corresponding liability is recognised within Non current provisions. Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions has been
recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense. Refer Note 27.

The Liability is remeasured at each balance sheet date and changes to the carrying amount of the liability is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The fair value of the SAR's was determined using the Black-Scholes model using the following inputs at the grant date and as at 31 March
2023:

. As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Share price at measurement date (INR per share) 752 725
Expected volatility (%) 0.01% 0.01%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 7.17% 5.65%
Carrying amount of liability — included under Non current provision (see note 272 68
17 a) (INR)

None of the SARs had vested as at 31 March 2023.

Details of benami property held

There are no proceedings that have been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended from time to time) (earlier Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988) and the rules
made thereunder.

Willful defaulter
The Group has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Relationship with struck off companies
The Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017, and there are no companies beyond the specified layers.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

(a) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding (whether recorded in

writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”); or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Party”) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(ii)provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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47 Undisclosed Income
The Group does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-
tax Act, 1961). Further, there was no previously unrecorded income and no additional assets were required to be recorded in the books of
account during the year.

418 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Group has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current year or previous year. Further, the
Group has also not received any deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency or Virtual
Currency.

49 Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the current or previous year.

50 Borrowing secured against current assets
The Group has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Group with
such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Group. The Group does not have borrowings from financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

51 Utilisation of Borrowings Availed from Banks and Financial Institutions
The borrowings obtained by the Group from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.

52 Compliance with approved scheme of arrangement
Scheme of Arrangement as described in Note 36 has been accounted for in the books of account of the Group in accordance with the
approved Scheme and in accordance with accounting standards and there are no deviation in this regard.

53 Loans or advances to specified persons
The Group have not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties (as defined
under Companies Act, 2013) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are (a) repayable on demand; or (b) without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

i

Mumba
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54 Additional information required by Schedule Il in respect of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures*
Rs. In Lakhs

Net assets (total assets Share in other Share in total
i e Share in profit or (loss) = .
minus total liabilities) comprehensive income | comprehensive income

Name of the entity As % of As % of
in the group As % of As % of consolidat consolidate
cansoliat Amount Eopsolld Amount ecloghes Amount d total Amount
ed net ated profit comprehe comorehen
assets or loss nsive . p
. sive income
income
Parent {Ivalue Infosolutions Private Limited)
31 March 2023 100.8% 30,199 99.3% 5,947 6.9% (0) 99.3% 5,947
31 March 2022 100.7% 24,229 104.0% 4,619 0.0% (0) 104.1% 4,619
Subsidiary (Asia iValue Pte Limited)
31 March 2023 -0.1% (40) 1.1% 68 69.4% (3) 1.1% 65
31 March 2022 -0.4% (105) -4.0% (179) 100.0% (1) -4,1% (180)

Subsidiary (ASPL info Services Private Limited
and ASPL Info Services FZE)

31 March 2023 -0.8% (227) -2.2% (129) 4.7% (0) -2.2% (129)
31 March 2022 = - - = = = = =

Non Controlling Interest

31 March 2023 -0.3% (97) -0.9% (55) 2.0% (0) -0.9% (55)
31 March 2022 = - -

Consolidation adjustments

31 March 2023 0.5% 135 2.7% 161 16.9% (1) 2.7% 160

31 March 2022 -0.3% (75) - - - - - -

Total as per Consolidated financial statements
31 March 2023 100.0% 29,970 100.0% 5,992 100.0% (4) 100.0% 5,988

31 March 2022 100.0% 24,049 100.0% 4,440 100.0% (1) 100.0% 4,439
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55 Business Combinations
Summary of acquisition
On 16 February 2023, the Company acquired 70% of the issued share capital of ASPL Info Services Private
Limited, a company primarily engaged in the business of designing, implementing and supporting
information technology infrastructure. This acquisition will enable the group in deriving business synergies

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:
Company paid a purchase consideration of Rs. 550 Lakhs for the above acquisition.

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Amount
Total Assets acquired 517
Total liabilities assumed (819)
Net Identified Assets/ (liabilities) Acquired (302)
Calculation of Goodwill Amount
Consideration transferred 550
Non-controlling interest in the acquired entity (91)
Less: Net identifiable liabilities acquired 302
Goodwill 761

The goodwill is attributable to the workforce and potential business synergy. It will not be deductible for
tax purposes.

There were no acquisitions in Financial Year ending March 31, 2022
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56  iValue St (Private) Limited and Ivalue Infosolutions Sea Co., LTD had been incorporated as wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. However, there has been
no infusion of capital, and operations of the subsidiaries are yet to commence as of 31 March 2023.

57  Group's interest in Subsidiaries:

The Group's wholly owned subsidiaries along with country of incorporation, place of operations, and principal activities for the YE March 31, 2023 are as set out

below:

Name of the entity

Principal |Country of
activity Incorporation

Place of operations

iValue S L (Private) Limited Trading Srilanka Srilanka

Ivalue Infosolutions Sea Co., LTD Trading Cambodia Cambodia

Asia iValue Pte. Ltd Trading Singapore Singapore

ASPL Info Services Private Limited Service India India

ASPL Info Services (FZE} Service United Arab United Arab Emirates
Emirates
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